
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
APPROVED Minutes of the King William County Board of Supervisors 

Work Session Meeting of November 7, 2022 
Page 1 of 19 

APPROVED MINUTES 
KING WILLIAM COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
WORK SESSION MEETING OF NOVEMBER 7, 2022 

 
A work session meeting of the Board of Supervisors of King William County, Virginia, was held on 
the 7th day of November, 2022 beginning at 7:00 p.m. in the Board Meeting Room of the County 
Administration Building and via Zoom. 
 
Agenda Item 1.  CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Moren called the meeting to order. 
 
Vice Chair Hodges made a motion to approve electronic participation for Supervisor Greenwood in 
accordance with the Code of Virginia § 2.2-3708.3 (3) due to being more than 60 miles from 
tonight’s meeting location (Hawaii). Supervisor Garber seconded. The Chairman called for any 
discussion. The members were polled: 
 
Supervisor, 3rd District:  Stephen K. Greenwood  
Supervisor, 1st District:  William L. Hodges – Vice Chair Aye 
Supervisor, 4th District:  C. Stewart Garber, Jr.  Aye 
Supervisor, 2nd District:  Travis J. Moskalski Aye 
Supervisor, 5th District:  Edwin H. Moren, Jr. – Chairman Aye 
 
Agenda Item 2.  ROLL CALL 
The members of the Board of Supervisors were polled: 
 
Supervisor, 1st District:  William L. Hodges – Vice Chair Aye 
Supervisor, 4th District:  C. Stewart Garber, Jr.  Aye 
Supervisor, 2nd District:  Travis J. Moskalski Aye 
Supervisor, 3rd District:  Stephen K. Greenwood Aye (Zoom) 
Supervisor, 5th District:  Edwin H. Moren, Jr. – Chairman Aye 
 
Agenda Item 3.  REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF AMENDED MEETING AGENDA 
Mr. Hudgins said Item 6f could be removed from the agenda because the Commissioner was not 
available to attend the meeting. 
 
Supervisor Moskalski made a motion to approve the amended agenda with the above change. 
Supervisor Garber seconded. The Chairman called for any discussion. The members were polled: 
 
Supervisor, 4th District:  C. Stewart Garber, Jr.  Aye 
Supervisor, 2nd District:  Travis J. Moskalski Aye 
Supervisor, 3rd District:  Stephen K. Greenwood Aye (Zoom) 
Supervisor, 1st District:  William L. Hodges – Vice Chair Aye 
Supervisor, 5th District:  Edwin H. Moren, Jr. – Chairman Aye 
 
  



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
APPROVED Minutes of the King William County Board of Supervisors 

Work Session Meeting of November 7, 2022 
Page 2 of 19 

Agenda Item 4.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
4.a. September 12, 2022 Work Session Draft Minutes 
Vice Chair Hodges made a correction to his requests on page 6. “He said there is a Virginia tax-
exempt program for veterans aged 55 and over.” 
 
Supervisor Moskalski made a motion to approve the September 12, 2022 Work Session Minutes 
with the above change. Supervisor Garber seconded. The Chairman called for any discussion. The 
members were polled: 
 
Supervisor, 2nd District:  Travis J. Moskalski Aye 
Supervisor, 3rd District:  Stephen K. Greenwood Aye (Zoom) 
Supervisor, 1st District:  William L. Hodges – Vice Chair Aye 
Supervisor, 4th District:  C. Stewart Garber, Jr.  Aye 
Supervisor, 5th District:  Edwin H. Moren, Jr. – Chairman Aye 
 
Agenda Item 5.  PRESENTATIONS 
5.a. All Points Broadband Update - Kyle Rosner, Director of Government Affairs (Zoom) 
Mr. Rosner gave an update on the County’s Broadband project (Attachment A). In August 2022, the 
18-month project period was reduced to 12 months. They are currently in the preliminary design 
phase with engineering so that construction plans can be made. The project should be complete by 
August 2023. 
 
Mr. Rosner said they are confident that Dominion and REC will both meet all deadlines for middle-
mile construction. He said every pole has to be assessed and the construction work will be 
contracted out such that crews will have at least six weeks of work ready to do so they can secure a 
labor force. He said Dominion and REC are ramping up to 1,000+ total poles per month just in King 
William County, which is a huge undertaking. 
 
The project is divided into fiber distribution areas (FDAs). The construction within those FDAs will 
be sequenced to ensure an optimal timeline. Customers in an FDA will be notified approximately 90 
days in advance of service going live in their FDA. Aggressive marketing will then take place to 
ensure customers know service is available. Each FDA is lit all at once, not house by house. 
 
There is a new website where citizens can check availability at their address – apbfiber.com. Those 
who already registered at the old site do NOT need to register again at the new site. 
 
The standard installation fee is $199 for the first 12-months, regardless of how far the house is from 
the pole. After that, standard installation is within 500ft of the nearest terminal. Those living far 
from the pole should sign up within the first year to take advantage of this discount. Those with 
underground wiring will be price on a case-by-case basis. 
 
Mr. Rosner said citizens and the Board can help with the project by spreading the word about the 
new registration site - apbfiber.com, visiting their hiring page – allpointsbroadband.com/careers, 
and appreciating and understanding the overall scale of the project including the fact that everyone 
is currently experiencing supply chain shortages and labor shortages, and managing people’s 
expectations. 

https://allpointsbroadband.com/fiber/
https://allpointsbroadband.com/fiber/
https://allpointsbroadband.com/careers/


______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
APPROVED Minutes of the King William County Board of Supervisors 

Work Session Meeting of November 7, 2022 
Page 3 of 19 

Supervisor Garber asked about the Affordable Connectivity Program (ACP) discounts being offered 
and how long they last. Mr. Rosner said the FCC gives a subsidy to APB and the discounts last for as 
long as the person is eligible and remains an APB customer. 
 
Supervisor Garber asked for clarification of underground wiring options. Mr. Rosner said if a 
customer’s lines are solely underground, they will likely go underground as well. They follow the 
electric lines. The cost is figured on a case-by-case basis. 
 
Supervisor Moskalski said Dominion is moving some areas to underground wiring and asked if APB 
is coordinating with them to know which areas are changing. Mr. Rosner said yes, they talk weekly 
with Dominion and get their line data from them. 
 
Supervisor Moskalski asked how firm the 12-month timeframe is and how confident APB is that 
they will complete the project within it. Mr. Rosner said they are very confident the entire project 
will be complete by August 2023. He said he cannot provide a high level of detail at the moment 
such as what areas will be done when. 
 
Supervisor Moskalski asked what the adoption rate has been in the Northern Neck area. Mr. Rosner 
said around 50-60%. He said it varies by community and will tick up over time. 
 
Chairman Moren asked if the connection fee is ACP eligible. Mr. Rosner said he was not sure and 
would check. 
 
Chairman Moren pointed out on the service map that Breezeline services the center portion of the 
County where there are no green dots (APB’s service area). Breezeline received an RDOF grant and 
was recently approved to proceed by the FCC. They have up to five-years to complete their project. 
 
Supervisor Greenwood said no one in that area is served by Breezeline and when they ask, 
Breezeline says they are not coming there. Chairman Moren said he and Mr. Rosner would talk in 
person with him to learn more about the issues people in that area are facing. 
 
Mr. Rosner clarified that whether your wiring is underground or aerial on a pole, if you’re in the 
APB project area, you’re covered. He said standard installation is aerial and underground is priced 
on a case-by-case basis. 
 
Chairman Moren asked if APB would match Dominion’s pace if they were running late. Mr. Rosner 
said yes but he does not think that would happen. 
 
5.b. Opioid Abatement Funding Request - Linda Hodges, Executive Director, Middle 
Peninsula Northern Neck Community Services Board  
Ms. Hodges presented information about the MPNNCSB’s service offerings. For opioid addiction, 
services include intensive outpatient, residential services, inpatient, and medication assisted 
treatment (MAT) which includes counseling and support. They provide transportation through 
their peer support department. Amanda Campagnola, Director of Community Based Services, 
presented information on Residential Services. They currently have one residential facility – 
Discovery Place in Middlesex County. Ms. Hodges showed a video presentation on Peer Recovery. 
 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=zuWYVUCs-rE


______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
APPROVED Minutes of the King William County Board of Supervisors 

Work Session Meeting of November 7, 2022 
Page 4 of 19 

Vice Chair Hodges said they’re being pushed to provide medication only treatment in the jails at the 
locality’s expense. Ms. Hodges said she hadn’t heard of this and will look into it. 
 
Supervisor Garber said the drugs used in the MAT program can also be addictive. 
 
Chairman Moren asked how many King William patients there are at any given time. Ms. Hodges 
said 2-4.  
 
Chairman Moren asked about the success rate for opioid addiction recovery. Ms. Hodges said they 
don’t have those figures yet but are working on it. Vice Chair Hodges said it’s not very high. Ms. 
Hodges said withdrawal can be severe. 
 
Sheriff Walton said there were 21 overdoses in 2021. So far this year, there are already 27. He would 
like some of the funding kept local and would like to see more treatment done in the County. He said 
the MPNNCSB does a wonderful job. 
 
Commonwealth Attorney Matt Kite said he would also like to see some of the funding kept local and 
see local treatment options. He said King William is the 2nd or 3rd largest county served by the 
MPNNCSB and there are more than 3-4 citizens who need help. He would like the money to be used 
to help our own citizens.  
 
Mr. Kite said opioid addiction is an issue in King William County. People will say or do anything to 
stay out of jail. Most treatment programs are in Richmond and Henrico and they often don’t have a 
way to get there. One idea is to provide financial assistance to our citizens to attend an intensive 
outpatient program.  
 
Mr. Kite said he would like to see our own CSB office in the County. He thinks it would benefit the 
citizens immensely. The County could offset the cost by providing space, for example. He would like 
to see the funds used in whatever way would benefit our community best. 
 
Supervisor Moskalski said the Board will need to spend time thinking how the money can be 
divided. 
 
Chairman Moren said to work with the Sheriff and Mr. Kite. 
 
Ms. Brown said the County received $60,000 in FY23. She said we’ll probably receive $15,000 
annually thereafter. She said you can get a 25% incentive by complying with reporting. She will 
come up with a plan with the Sheriff and Mr. Kite to share with the CSB. 
 
Supervisor Garber asked Mr. Kite how big of a space would be needed to have a CSB office. Mr. Kite 
said he didn’t know. We’d work with the CSB on details like that. 
 
Supervisor Greenwood said he’d be interested in finding a building. 
 
Mr. Hudgins said we will need to push this item to a later agenda for further discussion. Ms. Brown 
said the Commonwealth is not fully set up yet. 
 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
APPROVED Minutes of the King William County Board of Supervisors 

Work Session Meeting of November 7, 2022 
Page 5 of 19 

5.c. Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Year Ended June 30, 2021 - Aaron B. 
Hawkins, Robinson, Farmer, Cox (Zoom) 
Mr. Hawkins presented the final report. He said no opinions or findings have changed from the draft. 
The only changes are the addition of the management discussion and analysis as well as some 
grammatical and typographical corrections. 
 
Supervisor Greenwood asked if all issues with the departments are cleared up. Mr. Hawkins said no. 
It is still a work in progress catching up with the past bank reconciliations. He said we are not out 
of the woods until those are caught up. 
 
Vice Chair Hodges asked if the fraudulent payment has to be reported. Mr. Hawkins said it depends 
on the amount and recovery. Ms. Brown said the federal reserve got involved. 
 
5.d. Motion Needed to Authorize Board Chairman and Deputy County Administrator to Sign 
and Submit Notarized Statement Certifying Presentation of FY2021 Financial Report to Local 
Governing Body - Natasha Brown, Director of Financial Services 
Supervisor Garber made a motion to authorize the Board Chairman and Deputy County 
Administrator to sign and submit a notarized statement certifying the FY2021 financial report was 
presented to the Board of Supervisors. Vice Chair Hodges seconded. The Chairman called for any 
discussion. The members were polled: 
 
Supervisor, 3rd District:  Stephen K. Greenwood Aye (Zoom) 
Supervisor, 1st District:  William L. Hodges – Vice Chair Aye 
Supervisor, 4th District:  C. Stewart Garber, Jr.  Aye 
Supervisor, 2nd District:  Travis J. Moskalski Aye 
Supervisor, 5th District:  Edwin H. Moren, Jr. – Chairman Aye 
 
Agenda Item 6.  WORK SESSION MATTERS 
6.a. Sweet Sue Solar Update - Melanie Rapp Beale, Dominion Energy External Affairs Manager 
 
6.b. Personal Property Tax Clarifications - Steve Hudgins, Deputy County Administrator 
Mr. Hudgins reminded people of the action taken by the Board to mitigate personal property tax bill 
amounts. The Board reduced the rate by $1. The only projected increase in revenue over last year 
is capturing new growth.  
 
Supervisor Moskalski said people are reacting to the assessed value before looking at the tax 
amount. He reminded people the County has to use the assessed values provided, as always, as per 
the Code of Virginia. The Board did all they can do which was lower the rate. 
 
Chairman Moren said if there is an error on the bill, citizens should get their information together 
and talk with the Commissioner of the Revenue. He said the revenue from personal property tax 
goes to the Schools and County. 
 
Supervisor Moskalski said to look at last year’s bill and the amount due should be substantially the 
same. He said his was. He also reminded people that the County does not prorate so the tax is based 
on the value as of January 1. 
 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
APPROVED Minutes of the King William County Board of Supervisors 

Work Session Meeting of November 7, 2022 
Page 6 of 19 

Supervisor Greenwood said the bills were confusing and the high mileage discount was not easy to 
see on the bill so people are questioning whether it was applied. Citizens can call the Commissioner 
of the Revenue to ensure that it was – it is not broken out on the bill. 
 
Supervisor Garber said if someone truly thinks they’re being taxed on a vehicle they don’t own 
anymore, contact the Commissioner of the Revenue’s office. He said the Board was proactive. 
 
Chairman Moren asked Mr. Hudgins to add the spreadsheet to the website tomorrow. He said he 
will. 
 
Chairman Moren said there was a good Wall Street Journal article people could read for more 
information - Why your car may be worth more today than when you bought it. 
 
6.c. Changes to HPARB Bylaws - Christina Grover, Zoning Administrator 
Ms. Grover presented changes to the HPARB Bylaws necessary for the Certified Local Government 
(CLG) status they are seeking for the County. The changes also allow for the HPARB to change their 
own bylaws in the future. 
 
Carl Fischer, HPARB Chairman, said he is very optimistic that the County will get CLG status. 
 
Supervisor Greenwood asked if the County Attorney had looked over the bylaws. Ms. Grover said 
not specifically. Mr. Hudgins said he was provided a copy with the Board packet.  
 
Chairman Moren asked that the HPARB provide the Board with a copy if they change the bylaws in 
the future. 
 
Supervisor Moskalski made a motion to adopt the HPARB Bylaws with the changes presented. 
Supervisor Greenwood seconded. The Chairman called for any discussion. The members were 
polled: 
 
Supervisor, 1st District:  William L. Hodges – Vice Chair Aye 
Supervisor, 4th District:  C. Stewart Garber, Jr.  Aye 
Supervisor, 2nd District:  Travis J. Moskalski Aye 
Supervisor, 3rd District:  Stephen K. Greenwood Aye (Zoom) 
Supervisor, 5th District:  Edwin H. Moren, Jr. – Chairman Aye 
 
6.d. Revisions to Academy Charter and Bylaws - Jeff Walton, Sheriff 
Sheriff Walton said King William County has been a member of the Rappahannock Regional Criminal 
Justice Academy (RRCJA) since 1978 and is considered a charter member. In that time, the Charter 
and Bylaws have not been updated. The charter currently allows only Charter members a vote on 
financial matters and a voice on the Executive Committee. The new changes would make all member 
votes now carry the same weight. 
 
He said King & Queen County has raised concerns about the RRCJA’s ability to incur debt. He said it 
is allowed by Code and has always been that way. They have been incurring debt with the purchase, 
additions and improvements to, and maintenance of the current facility. The suggested 
amendments do not change how they fund or accrue debt. He asked for the Board’s approval. 

https://www.wsj.com/articles/why-the-car-in-your-garage-may-be-gaining-value-11644575402


______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
APPROVED Minutes of the King William County Board of Supervisors 

Work Session Meeting of November 7, 2022 
Page 7 of 19 

 
Supervisor Garber asked if any other localities were concerned. Sheriff Walton said not that he is 
aware. He said if we do not agree to it, we’re no longer part of the Academy. Members are required 
to give two years notice of their intent to pull out and then the Academy has to vote. He does not 
advocate pulling out. 
 
Vice Chair Hodges said it’s allowed by State Code.  
 
Supervisor Moskalski said unless something compelling comes up, he’s ok with moving forward 
with it.  
 
Sheriff Walton said he was part of the committee that revised the Charter and Bylaws.  
 
6.e. Proposed Ordinance to Update King William County Code Article XIX. FLOODS to Reflect 
and Adopt New FEMA Flood Plain Maps - Sherry Graham, Director of Planning  
Ms. Graham said the Virginia Department of Conservation and Recreation (DCR) had reviewed the 
Ordinance update, which is required by FEMA, and made changes. If it’s adopted, it will go back to 
DCR and then to FEMA for final approval. Then the County can adopt the revised maps which 
become effective April 2023. 
 
Chairman Moren asked if the changes were retroactive. Ms. Graham said no. She said a lot of the 
information is already in the County Ordinance and DCR just changed the wording. She said the 
County isn’t really affected but the Town of West Point is. 
 
The general consensus of the Board was to move forward with publishing the Public Hearing notice. 
 
6.f. Commissioner of Revenue Budget Transfer - Steve Hudgins, Deputy County Administrator 
 
6.g. Ordinance Amendment Clarifying License Fee Exemptions - Steve Hudgins, Deputy 
County Administrator  
Mr. Hudgins said the Commissioner of the Revenue has requested a change to the way the 
exemptions for volunteer fire and rescue members are processed. Instead of the volunteer 
requesting it, the chief would request it for everyone. 
 
Supervisor Greenwood asked if the exemption should also apply to paid firefighters. Vice Chair 
Hodges said then it should be given to deputies too. 
 
Supervisor Moskalski said this was a volunteer incentive. They would need to look deeper at 
including others.  
 
Supervisor Greenwood asked what if a volunteer doesn’t want the exemption. Mr. Hudgins said they 
could let their chief know. This process would ensure that everyone has the same access to the 
exemption. 
 
The general consensus of the Board was to move forward with publishing the Public Hearing notice. 
 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
APPROVED Minutes of the King William County Board of Supervisors 

Work Session Meeting of November 7, 2022 
Page 8 of 19 

6.h. Ordinance 02-22C - Corrections to Errors in Polling Locations and Street Name - Steve 
Hudgins, Deputy County Administrator 
Mr. Hudgins said errors were found in the Ordinance which need to be corrected.  
 
Supervisor Garber asked about handicapped access at Brett Reed Memorial. Mr. Hudgins said poll 
workers will bring ballots to the car. 
 
The general consensus of the Board was to move forward with publishing the Public Hearing notice. 
 
6.i. Reducing Number of Members on EDA Board - Steve Hudgins, Deputy County 
Administrator 
Mr. Hudgins said the EDA Board currently lost a member because she was hired by the County. State 
Code and EDA Bylaws state employees cannot serve on the Board. They would like direction on 
whether this would be a good time to reduce the number of members on the Board, perhaps to 
seven. They would not remove anyone, the next term to expire would be allowed to expire.  
 
Supervisor Moskalski said the initial purpose of asking the General Assembly to allow nine members 
was so working subcommittees could be formed but that never happened. 
 
Mr. Hudgins said State Code states, “the board of supervisors of King William County may appoint 
nine members to serve on the board of the authority.” It does not stipulate that there must be nine 
members. It is up to the Board of Supervisors.  
 
The general consensus of the Board was to recommend the EDA reduce the number of Authority 
Board Members to seven. A change to their bylaws will be required. 
 
6.j. Recreation Survey Results - Christine Branch, Deputy Clerk 
Ms. Branch provided a brief overview of the information gathered from the Recreation Survey 
(Attachment B). 
 
Agenda Item 7.  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ REQUESTS 
Vice Chair Hodges said Howard J. Cook passed away on November 3rd. 
 
Supervisor Moskalski said he would like monthly updates from All Points Broadband, in writing at 
least. He would like them to present in-person once construction begins. He wants the Board to be 
very involved with the process. 
 
Supervisor Garber said there is a Rabies Clinic on November 12th from 8:30-11:30pm in the 
Courthouse parking lot. Shots are $10 and dog licenses can also be purchased. 
 
Chairman Moren said the next DMV Connect will be held at the Parks & Rec Community Center on 
December 13th. He said Benjamin Shumaker had been appointed to the Governor’s Cyber Security 
Planning Committee. 
 
Agenda Item 8.  CLOSED MEETING 
8.a. Motion to Convene Closed Meeting 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
APPROVED Minutes of the King William County Board of Supervisors 

Work Session Meeting of November 7, 2022 
Page 9 of 19 

Supervisor Moskalski made a motion to convene in closed meeting in accordance with Section 2.2-
3711 (A)(3) of the Code of Virginia regarding real property used for a public purpose specifically 
pertaining to the acquisition of real property for a public purpose because discussion in an open 
meeting may adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of the Board, and in 
accordance with Section 2.2-3711 (A)(1) of the Code of Virginia to consider a personnel matter 
involving the appointment of individuals to Boards and Commissions. Vice Chair Hodges seconded 
the motion. The Chairman called for any discussion. The members were polled: 
 
Supervisor, 4th District:  C. Stewart Garber, Jr.  Aye 
Supervisor, 2nd District:  Travis J. Moskalski Aye 
Supervisor, 3rd District:  Stephen K. Greenwood Aye 
Supervisor, 1st District:  William L. Hodges – Vice Chair Aye 
Supervisor, 5th District:  Edwin H. Moren, Jr. – Chairman Aye 
 
8.b. Motion to Reconvene in Open Session 
Supervisor Moskalski made a motion to reconvene in Open Session. Vice Chair Hodges seconded the 
motion. The Chairman called for any discussion. The members were polled:  
 
Supervisor, 2nd District:  Travis J. Moskalski Aye 
Supervisor, 3rd District:  Stephen K. Greenwood Aye 
Supervisor, 1st District:  William L. Hodges – Vice Chair Aye 
Supervisor, 4th District:  C. Stewart Garber, Jr.  Aye 
Supervisor, 5th District:  Edwin H. Moren, Jr. – Chairman Aye 
 
8.c. Certification of Closed Meeting 
Supervisor Moskalski moved for adoption of Standing Resolution 1 (SR-1) in accordance with 
Section 2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended; the motion was seconded by 
Supervisor Greenwood. The Chairman called for any discussion. The members were polled: 
 
Supervisor, 3rd District:  Stephen K. Greenwood Aye 
Supervisor, 1st District:  William L. Hodges – Vice Chair Aye 
Supervisor, 4th District:  C. Stewart Garber, Jr.  Aye 
Supervisor, 2nd District:  Travis J. Moskalski Aye 
Supervisor, 5th District:  Edwin H. Moren, Jr. – Chairman Aye 

 
STANDING RESOLUTION – 1 (SR-1) 

A RESOLUTION TO CERTIFY COMPLIANCE WITH THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 
REGARDING MEETING IN CLOSED MEETING  

 
WHEREAS, the King William County Board of Supervisors has convened a closed meeting 

on this date pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote, and in accordance with the provisions of the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act; and,  

 
WHEREAS Section 2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia requires a certification by the King 

William County Board of Supervisors that such closed meeting was conducted in conformity with 
Virginia law, 

 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
APPROVED Minutes of the King William County Board of Supervisors 

Work Session Meeting of November 7, 2022 
Page 10 of 19 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the King William County Board of Supervisors on this 
7th day of November, 2022, hereby certifies that, to the best of each member’s knowledge:  

 
1. Only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting requirements under the 

Freedom of Information Act were heard, discussed, or considered in the closed meeting to 
which this certification resolution applies, by the King William County Board of Supervisors.  
 

2. Only such public business matters as were identified in the motion convening the closed 
meeting were heard, discussed, or considered by the King William County Board of 
Supervisors.  

 
DONE this the 7th day of November, 2022. 
 
8.d. Action on Closed Meeting (if necessary) 
No action was taken as a result of the Closed Meeting. 
 
Agenda Item 9.  ADJOURN OR RECESS 
Supervisor Garber made a motion to adjourn the meeting; seconded by Supervisor Moskalski. The 
Chairman called for any discussion. All were in favor with none opposing. 
 
 
COPY TESTE: 
 
 
 
 
    
Edwin H. Moren, Jr., Chairman  Christine H. Branch 
Board of Supervisors  Deputy Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT A 

APPROVED Minutes of the King William County Board of Supervisors 
Work Session Meeting of November 7, 2022 

Page 11 of 19 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT A 

APPROVED Minutes of the King William County Board of Supervisors 
Work Session Meeting of November 7, 2022 

Page 12 of 19 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT A 

APPROVED Minutes of the King William County Board of Supervisors 
Work Session Meeting of November 7, 2022 

Page 13 of 19 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT A 

APPROVED Minutes of the King William County Board of Supervisors 
Work Session Meeting of November 7, 2022 

Page 14 of 19 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT A 

APPROVED Minutes of the King William County Board of Supervisors 
Work Session Meeting of November 7, 2022 

Page 15 of 19 

 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT B 

APPROVED Minutes of the King William County Board of Supervisors 
Work Session Meeting of November 7, 2022 

Page 16 of 19 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT B 

APPROVED Minutes of the King William County Board of Supervisors 
Work Session Meeting of November 7, 2022 

Page 17 of 19 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT B 

APPROVED Minutes of the King William County Board of Supervisors 
Work Session Meeting of November 7, 2022 

Page 18 of 19 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT B 

APPROVED Minutes of the King William County Board of Supervisors 
Work Session Meeting of November 7, 2022 

Page 19 of 19 

 


